ROCKHILL

SOUTH CAROLINA

Traffic Commission Minutes

City of Rock Hill, South Carolina September 17, 2025

A public hearing of the Traffic Commission was held Wednesday, September 17, 2025, at
10a.m. in City Council Chambers at City Hall, 155 Johnston Street, Rock Hill SC.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Derrick Lindsay (Chair), Captain Jim Grayson (Rock Hill Police
Department), Jimmy Bagley (City Management) Christina
Jibrin (Neighborhood Services), Terrence Nealy (Public
Works), Steven Varnadore (Utilities), and Ivan McCorkle
(Project Management).

MEMBERS ABSENT: None

STAFF PRESENT: Christopher Herrmann, Shana Marshburn, and Ainsley Ellis
(Planning & Development), Queen Lundy and Jason Weil
(Neighborhood Services), Cliff Goolsby (SCDOT), Rob
Walsh (Campco Engineering), and Bryan McDaniel (Public
Works).

1. Call to Order
Chair Lindsay called the meeting to order at 10:00 A.M.

2. Approval of Minutes of the August 20, 2025, meeting.

Chair Lindsay asked if there were any additions, corrections or deletions from the August
20, 2025, meeting minutes. Mr. Bagley then made a motion that the minutes be approved
as presented; this was seconded by Mr. Nealy and was unanimously approved.

3. Business:
A. College Ave

Staff Member Chris Herrmann (City of Rock Hill Transportation Planner) provided an
overview of the area, highlighting termini, signage, road width, grading, and curvature.
Mr. Herrmann explained that College Ave is owned and maintained by City of Rock Hill.
Mr. Herrmann then noted that the roadway has a posted speed limit of 20 MPH. Mr.
Herrmann then stated that Traffic Commission has previously reviewed this location in
June 2025. Resulting action items from that meeting included: staff to complete a second
traffic study to gather information while Rock Hill School District and Winthrop University
are in session, and staff to coordinate with the neighborhood regarding a potential traffic
calming application.

Mr. Herrmann next reviewed results of the first traffic study completed in June 2025 as is
required by the City’s Traffic Calming Application Process. The traffic study captured an
average daily traffic volume of 160 trips per day. The study also captured a 50t percentile
speed of 22 MPH and an 85" percentile speed of 28 MPH. Mr. Herrmann explained that
58% of drivers were traveling above the speed limit, 26% of drivers were traveling above
25 MPH, and 6.7% of drivers were traveling above 30 MPH.

1|Page



Mr. Herrmann then reviewed the results of the second traffic study that was completed
on September 9th, 2025, capturing 185 daily trips on College Ave. The second traffic
study also captured a 50th percentile speed of 22 MPH and an 85th percentile speed of
27 MPH. Mr. Herrmann explained that 60% of drivers were traveling above the speed
limit, 24% of drivers were traveling above 25 MPH, and 5.6% of drivers were traveling
above 30 MPH. Mr. Herrmann then provided a summary of collision data on College Ave,
noting that 2 collisions had occurred between 2020 and 2024.

Mr. Bagley (City of Rock Hill, Deputy City Manager) asked Captain Grayson (Rock Hill
Police Department) whether he had any concerns about College Ave. Captain Grayson
said no, there was slight concern regarding parking around College Ave and Union Ave,
but no egregious speeding issues. Mr. Herrmann then summarized enforcement data
from the Rock Hill Police Department (RHPD), noting that there have been three warnings
and zero citations issued in the past five years, and one warning issued in the past twelve
months. Captain Grayson then noted that while both Winthrop University Police
Department and RHPD have engaged in enforcement in this area, Winthrop University
Police Department has been more active in the area, due to close proximity to the
University.

Chair Lindsay (City of Rock Hill, City Council) noticed that on the lower end, there are a
few houses that do not have driveways, so they are forced to park on the street. Chair
Lindsay then inquired whether the speeding only occurred in the upper end where the
student areas are, or whether it occurred along the entire street? Mr. Herrmann then
explained that residents noted during the June Traffic Commission meeting that the
speeding occurred along the entire street. Mr. Herrmann then asked for Mr. Walsh’s
opinion on the matter, due to the close proximity of the street to the Campco Engineering
office. Mr. Walsh (Campco Engineering) stated that there seems to be a lot of on-street
parking along College Ave. which acts as natural traffic calming. Mr. Walsh then stated
that comparing the two traffic studies seems to show that there is not a significant amount
of student traffic from Winthrop University as was anticipated by residents at the June
meeting. Ms. Jibrin (City of Rock Hill, Neighborhood Services Director) asked whether a
20 MPH speed limit zone is atypical, and whether there is a certain amount of signage
that reflects that in the area. Mr. Herrmann stated that there are are multiple signs in both
directions along College Ave. Mr. Herrmann then stated that while the 20 MPH speed
limit has been in place for a long time, it was atypical for a residential street within City
limits. Mr. Herrmann then highlighted that Traffic Commission would likely get a lot of
push back from residents if any changes to that speed limit were to be considered. Mr.
Bagley then agreed and suggested that targeted enforcement may be the best approach
given the data presented by staff.

Mr. Herrmann then transitioned to summarize feedback received from residents during
the June Traffic Commission meeting regarding traffic patterns when detours occur on
Charlotte Ave or Oakland Ave. Mr. Herrmann stated that College Ave residents
requested for City staff and SCDOT staff to not assign detours that direct traffic to utilize
College Ave. Mr. Herrmann then asked Mr. Nealy if this could be considered moving
forward, while keeping in mind that drivers will always find the path of least resistance
when it comes to traffic? Mr. Nealy (City of Rock Hill, Public Works Director) agreed and
noted that City staff could attempt to respond to this request but cannot control where
drivers choose to travel. Mr. Goolsby (SCDOT, District 4 Assistant Traffic Engineer)
agreed as well.

2|Page



Traffic Commission then unanimously recommended for RHPD to engage in targeted
enforcement in the area of College Ave and to coordinate with Winthrop University Police
Department in these efforts as well.

B. Rosewood Drive

Staff Member Chris Herrmann provided an overview of the area, highlighting termini,
signage, road width, grading, and curvature. Mr. Herrmann explained that Rosewood
Drive is owned and maintained by SCDOT. Mr. Herrmann then noted that the roadway
has an unposted speed limit of 30 MPH. Mr. Herrmann then stated that Traffic
Commission previously reviewed this location in November 2024. Resulting action items
from that meeting included: staff to complete an on-site assessment with SCDOT and
provide further information at a future meeting, and RHPD to perform targeted
enforcement in the neighborhood area.

Mr. Herrmann reminded Traffic Commission members that in November 2024 safety
concerns regarding speeding were provided by Ms. Kristy Cope (2134 Rosewood Drive,
Rock Hill, SC). Mr. Herrmann then noted that Ms. Cope had recently corresponded with
him to highlight that she continued to have these concerns along this roadway. Mr.
Herrmann then provided a summary of collision data on Rosewood Drive, noting that 3
collisions had occurred between 2020 and 2024.

Mr. Herrmann next reviewed results of a traffic study completed in November 2024. The
traffic study captured an average daily traffic volume of 260 trips per day. The study also
captured a 50" percentile speed of 33 MPH and an 85" percentile speed of 39 MPH. Mr.
Herrmann stated that 71.17% of drivers were traveling above the 30 MPH speed limit.

Mr. Herrmann then transitioned and asked Mr. Goolsby to summarize the findings of the
on-site assessment completed by SCDOT and City staff. Mr. Goolsby provided an
overview of the results of the on-site assessment, highlighting that Westminster Catawba
Christian School has a school located at the intersection of Rosewood Drive / Dutchman
Drive, which generates decent traffic in the area. Mr. Goolsby stated that staff were on-
site while school was in session. Mr. Herrmann added that he had also driven the area
during school drop-off times. Mr. Goolsby noted that the 30 MPH speed limit seemed to
be appropriate, especially given the data presented from the traffic study. However, Mr.
Goolsby did note that a number of streets accessing the neighborhood area are posted
as 25 MPH speed limit zones, so this may be a situation where Traffic Commission could
consider a 25 MPH neighborhood speed limit and SCDOT could evaluate assisting the
City in implementing that. Mr. Goolsby then transitioned to comment on the intersection
of Rosewood Drive / Aldersgate Road where a yield sign is located for drivers on
Rosewood Drive. Mr. Goolsby stated that this signage did seem confusing to drivers and
he would be recommending removal of the yield sign to the SCDOT District 4
Maintenance Office. Lastly, Mr. Goolsby stated that he and Mr. Herrmann had observed
that a new residential neighborhood is currently under construction on Dutchman Drive,
which currently has a section of Dutchman Drive closed to traffic, which is likely impacting
traffic patterns on Rosewood Drive.

Mr. Herrmann then added that during his on-site visits during morning drop off times for
the school, the all-way stop located at the intersection of Rosewood Drive / Hilltop Road
was concerning. Mr. Herrmann highlighted that drivers seem to be prone to rolling stops,
rather than coming to a full-stop as is required by law.

Mr. Herrmann then transitioned to note that RHPD had highlighted that enforcement in

3|Page



this area is challenging due to some areas of the neighborhood and along Rosewood
Drive being within City limits and some being outside City limits. Captain Grayson agreed,
noting that RHPD cannot conduct enforcement in the areas outside City limits. Captain
Grayson continued, noting that while RHPD and the York County Sheriff’'s Office (YCSO)
had coordinated the “donut holes” within the City present a real challenge for both parties.

Discussion then followed regarding the information presented. Mr. Bagley inquired
whether school zone signage would be appropriate on Rosewood Drive? Mr. Goolsby
stated that it could be considered, however there are regulations for how far away from
an actual school property such signage could be placed. Given those regulations such
signage could likely be placed at Rosewood Drive / Dutchman Drive and Rosewood Drive
/ Hilltop Road. Mr. Bagley stated that this may be appropriate to consider as the concerns
are likely related to the school traffic. Mr. Walsh then stated that the school zone signage
could impact the speed of drivers, but it can also lead to increased fines related to
enforcement efforts.

Discussion then transitioned regarding the challenges being experienced by RHPD and
YCSO regarding enforcement. Mr. Bagley suggested that Planning staff evaluate the
area for possible annexation, which would address the issue.

Mr. Herrmann then noted that it may be beneficial for staff to communicate with
Westminster Catawba Christian School to notify them of the safety concerns presented
by residents. Mr. Herrmann noted that these efforts have been successful in the past at
other school locations, if the school helps to communicate with parents and staff. Those
present agreed that this would be beneficial.

Traffic Commission then unanimously recommended for staff to coordinate with
Westminster Catawba at Rosewood about the traffic concerns. Traffic Commission also
unanimously recommended for staff to request that SCDOT remove the yield sign at the
intersection of Rosewood Drive / Aldersgate Road. Traffic Commission lastly provided
a unanimous recommendation for staff to request SCDOT to consider adding “School
Zone” signage on Rosewood Drive.

C. Eastwood Drive

Staff Member Chris Herrmann provided an overview of the area, highlighting termini,
signage, road width, grading, and curvature. Mr. Herrmann explained that Eastwood
Drive is owned and maintained by SCDOT. Mr. Herrmann then noted that the roadway
has an unposted speed limit of 30 MPH. Mr. Herrmann then stated that Traffic
Commission has previously reviewed this location in August 2025. Resulting action items
from that meeting included: staff to complete a traffic study and provide further information
at a future meeting.

Mr. Herrmann next reviewed results of a traffic study completed in September 2025. The
traffic study captured an average daily traffic volume of 1,160 trips per day. The study
also captured a 50" percentile speed of 30 MPH and an 85" percentile speed of 35 MPH.
Mr. Herrmann explained that this means that 50% of drivers were traveling at the
unposted speed limit or below and 85% of drivers were traveling at 35 MPH or below. In
addition, 44% of drivers were operating over the 30 MPH unposted speed limit, 32% over
30 MPH, 10 % over 35 MPH, and 2.1% over 40 MPH. Mr. Herrmann then provided a
summary of collision data on Eastwood Drive, noting that 13 collisions had occurred
between 2020 and 2024.

Dorothy Wring, (1071 Eastwood Drive, Rock Hill, SC) noted safety concerns on Eastwood
4|Page



Drive related to speeding. Mrs. Wring highlighted that Spencer Park is located near her
home and pedestrian activity associated with the park concerning as it relates to speeding
as well.

Discussion then followed regarding the concerns noted and information presented by
staff. Mr. Goolsby stated that the data from the traffic study seems to show that the un-
posted speed limit of 30 MPH is appropriate for Eastwood Drive. Mr. Herrmann then
highlighted that in terms of the corridor, Eastwood Drive terminates at Pinewood Road
and Spencer Street then continues from Pinewood Road to Standard Street. Mr.
Herrmann then reminded Traffic Commission that Spencer Street is posted as a 25 MPH
speed limit zone, with radar signs located there. Mr. Goolsby explained that the 25 MPH
speed limit zone and radar signs were implemented based on recommendation by the
City’s Traffic Commission in previous years. This was recommended due to the close
proximity to Belleview Elementary School, which has since been closed as a school and
now houses Affinity Health Center and other activities for Rock Hill School District. Mr.
Goolsby noted that this has changed traffic patterns and SCDOT would be open to
evaluating the removal of this signage.

Mr. Herrmann stated that what they are seeing is most likely traffic volume related. He
stated that Traffic Commission could consider traffic calming measures if the
neighborhood wanted to pursue them, as this roadway would meet the minimum score
required. Mr. Herrmann then gave a brief overview of the City’s Traffic Calming
Application Process to Ms. Wring. Mr. Herrmann also noted that it may be beneficial for
staff to reach out to the Rock Hill School District to make them aware of the traffic
concerns noted by residents.

Traffic Commission then unanimously recommended for RHPD to engage in targeted
enforcement in the area. Traffic Commission also unanimously recommended for staff to
coordinate with Rock Hill School District regarding the safety concerns. Traffic
Commission lastly recommended for staff to coordinate with the neighborhood regarding
a potential traffic calming application.

D. Cummings Street

Staff Member Chris Herrmann (City of Rock Hill Transportation Planner) provided an
overview of the area, highlighting termini, signage, road width, grading, and curvature.
Mr. Herrmann explained that Cummings Street is owned and maintained by SCDOT. Mr.
Herrmann then noted that the roadway has an un-posted speed limit of 30 MPH. Mr.
Herrmann then stated that Traffic Commission has not previously reviewed this location.

Mr. Herrmann transitioned to explain that Ms. Brenda Moorer (425 Cummings Street,
Rock Hill, SC) had communicated safety concerns regarding speeding on Cummings
Street. Mr. Herrmann then stated that there was no traffic study data available for
Cummings Street, though staff would recommend completing a study to further evaluate
the concerns. Mr. Herrmann also provided a summary of collision data on Cummings
Street, noting that 20 collisions had occurred between 2020 and 2024. Mr. Goolsby then
pointed out that the majority of these collisions seemed to have occurred at the
intersection of Cummings Street / White Street. Mr. Herrmann agreed and noted that he
would prefer to further examine that data, also noting that 7 accidents occurred over 5
years along Cummings Street with an additional 2 accidents occurring at the intersection
of Cummings Street / Willowbrook Ave. Chair Lindsay then inquired if staff would need to
evaluate whether there are any sight distance challenges at this intersection of Cummings
Street / White Street? Mr. Herrmann stated that this could be done with an additional on-
5|Page



site assessment, but per the data, the majority of the collisions at this intersection appear
to be caused by drivers disregarding signs and signals. Mr. Bagley then inquired about
the existing signage on Cummings Street, asking whether there is a posted 20 MPH
Speed Limit, or if there is an advisory speed of 20 MPH posted in relation to the curve?
Mr. Herrmann confirmed that there is only an advisory speed posting of 20 MPH in relation
to the curve and that the roadway is considered to have a 30 MPH un-posted speed limit
according to City Ordinance.

Mr. Herrmann then transitioned to highlight the intersection of Cummings Street /
Standard Street near the railroad crossing. Mr. Herrmann noted that there appears to be
a stop bar placed at the southbound leg of this intersection on Cummings Street, without
any accompanying signage. Mr. Herrmann stated that while on-site he observed this to
be quite confusing for drivers. Mr. Goolsby noted that SCDOT staff would evaluate the
intersection in terms of signage and pavement markings.

Traffic Commission then unanimously recommended staff to complete a traffic study and
provide additional information at a future meeting. Traffic Commission also unanimously
recommended for staff to request SCDOT to evaluate the intersection of Cummings
Street / Standard Street in terms of signage and pavement markings.

E. Montford Ave

Staff Member Chris Herrmann (City of Rock Hill Transportation Planner) provided an
overview of the area, highlighting termini, signage, road width, grading, and curvature.
Mr. Herrmann explained that Montford Ave is owned and maintained by the City of Rock
Hill and SCDOT. SCDOT owns and maintains Montford Ave between Iredell Street and
Barrow Street, while the City of Rock Hill owns and maintains Montford Ave between
Barrow Street and the cul-de-sac. Mr. Herrmann then noted that the roadway has an
unposted speed limit of 30 MPH. Mr. Herrmann then stated that Traffic Commission has
not previously reviewed this location.

Mr. Herrmann then transitioned to highlight concerns communicated to staff by Ms. Penny
Tallent (17 Barrow Street, Rock Hill, SC). Mr. Herrmann noted that Ms. Tallent had
conveyed a desire from herself and other area residents of reconnecting Montford Ave to
Gateway Blvd, which would grant connectivity to the signalized intersection of Dave Lyle
Blvd / Gateway Blvd. Ms. Tallent had stated that drivers had difficulty exiting Iredell Street
onto Dave Lyle Blvd.

Mr. Herrmann then summarized that Montford Ave had previously connected to what is
now Gateway Blvd, but this connection was removed in the late 1980’s to early 1990’s
when Tech Park and Lakeshore Parkway were created. Mr. Bagley then noted that he
would assume the roadway was disconnected due to concerns of industrial and
commercial traffic mixing with the residential traffic of the neighborhood.

Mr. Herrmann then asked Mr. Goolsby whether SCDOT would be in favor of reconnecting
Montford Ave to Gateway Blvd? Mr. Goolsby confirmed that SCDOT would be in favor of
doing so based on the improved connectivity.  Mr. Bagley then highlighted that the
landscaped median that exists on Gateway Blvd would need to be evaluated for sight
distance and visibility challenges if Montford Ave was to be reconnected to Gateway Blvd.
Those in attendance agreed. Mr. Goolsby however did point out that the cut-out in the
median still exists in the location where Montford Ave previously connected.

Mr. Walsh then inquired about the ownership of the property between Montford Ave and
Dave Lyle Blvd. Mr. Herrmann confirmed that the parcel is owned and maintained by the
6|Page



City of Rock Hill as part of the existing Jack White Trail. Mr. Walsh noted the importance
of the ownership of that property as additional ROW may be required. Mr. Herrmann
agreed. Mr. Herrmann then highlighted that within the ROW where Montford Ave
previously extended to where Gateway Blvd is today, there now lies a residential driveway
for the property located at 24 Montford Ave. Mr. Herrmann stated that this would need to
be evaluated if a project were to be considered.

Mr. Varnadore then asked if residents had considered that connecting Montford Ave to
Gateway Blvd could increase cut-through traffic on Montford Ave? Mr. Herrmann noted
that he had only communicated with Ms. Tallent, though he could coordinate with
Neighborhood Services to get more feedback. Mr. Herrmann did highlight however, that
Montford Ave likely experiences a higher level of residential traffic already from Barrow
Street and Cauthen Street as drivers attempt to connect to Iredell Street and Dave Lyle
Blvd. Mr. McCorkle then asked if there was any limitations within the Business Park
regulations regarding any re-connection of Montford Ave? Mr. Herrmann stated that he
was not certain, though staff could coordinate with Economic & Urban Development to
find out. Mr. Herrmann then stated that he can continue to communicate with residents
on the potential of Montford Ave reconnecting with Gateway Blvd, however this would be
a project well outside the budget of Traffic Commission. Mr. Walsh and Mr. McCorkle
agreed that the project cost would be quite sizeable. Mr. Herrmann then noted the
importance of setting realistic expectations with residents regarding this request. Mr.
Bagley agreed, adding that the project would be worth continuing to evaluate.

Traffic Commission then unanimously recommended for staff to continue researching the
potential for Montford Ave to extend to Gateway Blvd and coordinate with area residents.

F. Oates Street

Staff Member Chris Herrmann (City of Rock Hill Transportation Planner) provided an
overview of the area, highlighting termini, signage, road width, grading, and curvature.
Mr. Herrmann explained that Oates Street is owned and maintained by SCDOT. Mr.
Herrmann then noted that the roadway has an unposted speed limit of 30 MPH. Mr.
Herrmann then stated that Traffic Commission has not previously reviewed this location.

Ms. Gloria Finch (509 Oates Street, Rock Hill, SC) then addressed Traffic Commission
and noted safety concerns regarding speeding on Oates Street. Ms. Finch highlighted
that Rock Hill School District has a neighborhood bus stop at the intersection of Oates
Street / Haynes Street, which leads to multiple students walking within the roadway twice
per day, as there are no sidewalks along Oates Street. Ms. Finch then requested Traffic
Commission to consider pavement markings to delineate travel paths for drivers,
sidewalks along Oates Street, and traffic calming on Oates Street.

Mr. Herrmann then explained that there is currently not traffic study data available, but
staff would recommend completing a traffic study and providing further information at a
future meeting. Mr. Herrmann then explained this process to Ms. Finch, noting the
importance of gathering accurate data for Traffic Commission to fully evaluate her
concerns.

Mr. Goolsby then transitioned to explain that in terms of any physical changes to Oates
Street including pavement markings, sidewalks, or traffic calming, these would all be
improvements that would need to be considered and approved by SCDOT. Mr. Goolsby
added that since Oates Street is owned and maintained by SCDOT, they take a
recommendation from the City’s Traffic Commission under consideration, but ultimate

7|Page



approval lies with the State. Mr. Goolsby continued, noting that there are federal
regulations and guidelines for when to include pavement markings on residential streets
and when not to, often this is determined by traffic volumes and the classification of a
street. Mr. Goolsby then stated that implementing sidewalks along Oates Street would
be challenging due to limited right-of-way and this type of project could potentially be quite
impactful to property owners along the street.

Mr. Herrman then explained that traffic calming like speed humps would be something
that the Traffic Commission could consider and make a recommendation for to SCDOT.
However, the City has an application process for traffic calming projects and it is typically
quite competitive. Mr. Herrmann stated that the data collected through the traffic study
will help to determine whether Traffic Commission would be in favor of the neighborhood
submitting a Traffic Calming Application or not. Mr. Goolsby added that SCDOT does not
install traffic calming like speed humps on residential streets, so any project like this will
require approval and potentially funding through the City’s Traffic Commission. Mr.
Herrmann then noted that every Traffic Calming Application that is approved by the City’s
Traffic Commission are then required to be approved by City Council as well.

Traffic Commission then unanimously recommended that staff complete a traffic study
and provide additional information at a further meeting.

G. Tarleton Court

Staff Member Chris Herrmann (City of Rock Hill Transportation Planner) provided an
overview of the area, highlighting termini, signage, road width, grading, and curvature.
Mr. Herrmann explained that Tarleton Court is owned and maintained by the City of Rock
Hill. Mr. Herrmann then noted that the roadway has an unposted speed limit of 30 MPH.
Mr. Herrmann then stated that Traffic Commission has previously reviewed this location
in August 2024. Resulting action items from that meeting included: staff to implement “No
Parking Day of Service” signage in the cul-de-sac of Tarleton Court. Mr. Herrmann then
explained that in September 2024, Traffic Commission agreed to cancel the
implementation of “No Parking Day of Service” signage on Tarleton Court as Chair
Lindsay and other City staff were able to communicate with residents and resolve the
parking issues.

Mr. Herrmann then transitioned to explain that since last fall, the parking issues have
continued as City Public Works staff continue to experience challenges with providing
sanitation service on a weekly basis. Mr. Herrmann stated that in terms of steps of
progression in trying to deal with issues like this, staff would be comfortable now moving
forward with implementing “No Parking” signage or “No Parking Day of Service” signage.

Discussion then followed regarding the concerns presented by staff. Mr. Bryan McDaniel
(City of Rock Hill, Public Works Administrator) noted that in addition to the parking issues
in the cul-de-sac of Tarleton Court, there is a property owner directly across the cul-de-
sac on Colby Ave operates a food truck trailer that is often parking along the roadway.
Mr. McDaniel noted that this adds to the challenges of providing service in this part of the
neighborhood area.

Mr. Herrmann stated that staff has incorporated this signage in other areas, and he asked
Mr. Nealy whether that signage has improved these other areas around the City where
similar parking issues were interrupting Sanitation Service. Mr. Nealy confirmed that there
have been a couple of phone calls, but everyone is abiding by the signage for the most
part.

8|Page



Ms. Jibrin asked whether anything else could be done, especially in regard to emergency
services? Mr. Herrmann responded that if vehicles parked in a cul-de-sac or along the
street are impeding access for Emergency Services, then vehicles will be towed in that
situation Mr. Herrmann explained that in the past, Traffic Commission has tried to
address cul-de-sacs and T-Turnarounds like this with “No Parking Anytime” signage, and
have been met with some pushback, depending on the situation. Mr. Herrmann noted
that as stated by Mr. Nealy the “No Parking Day of Service” signage allows residents to
utilize on-street parking on other days of the week, yet makes drivers aware of when they
cannot utilize that on-street parking. Posting this signage also allows City Public Works
and RHPD to justify tickets or towing of vehicles when necessary.

Ms. Jibrin then inquired about the previous efforts of communication with residents in this
neighborhood area? Chair Lindsay noted that Jason Weil, City of Rock Hill, Community
Engagement Manager) had been out there a few times to speak with the residents. Mr.
Weil confirmed this, stating that he has not seen the parking in this negative extent in a
long time, but the City’s Neighborhood Services staff have sent notices to the entire
neighborhood about this issue.

Mr. Herrmann then stated that there are a total of three cul-de-sacs in this neighborhood,
that are designed in this same manner. Mr. Herrmann explained that it may be beneficial
to consider a signing scheme for the entire neighborhood to address parking, due to
possible spillover effects with parking once signage is added. Those in attendance
agreed with this approach.

Traffic Commission then unanimously recommended for staff to complete a signing
scheme for “No Parking” and “No Parking Day of Service” for the Broadmoor subdivision
and coordinate with Public Works to implement the signage.

Other Items
A. Status Report

Mr. Herrmann briefly summarized the status report on follow-up action items from the
previous meetings as well as action items completed by staff administratively.

Mr. Herrmann briefly summarized that the City had initiated a Thoroughfare Plan that is
now underway with a consultant team. Mr. Herrmann stated that Traffic Commission
members would likely be involved in this process over the next year and staff would be
providing periodic updates as the Plan progresses.

Mr. Herrmann then noted that City staff and SCDOT staff had been coordinating on a
application for the Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program through the Rock Hill —
Fort Mill Area Transportation Study (RFATS) Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO).
Mr. Herrmann explained that the application requests 100% federal funding to be utilized
on a signal improvement project along the Celanese Road / Old York Road Corridor. Mr.
Goolsby noted that the project would include upgrades to signal equipment and signal
timing at 14 different signalized intersections along the corridor. Mr. Herrmann then
stated that the project would be considered by the RFATS Policy Committee at the
September 26" meeting.

Next Meeting:
Mr. Herrmann noted that the next meeting is currently scheduled for October 15, 2025, at

9|Page



10:00 AM in Council Chambers at City Hall.

Adjourn:

There being no further business, Chair Lindsay made a motion to adjourn; this motion
was seconded by Mr. Bagley and was unanimously approved. The meeting adjourned at

11:39 AM.

10|Page



